HA-215 1845

Fulton Harness Shop
2 S. Main Street
Bel Air

Private

This small clapboard shop is Bel Air's only remaining
artisan's shop. Built in 1845, it was the harness shop of
James Fulton until 1890. It is typical of many little pre-
Civil War shops and its survival on a prime corner in Town is
remarkable,
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I DESCRIPTION Mo

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X _ORIGINAL SITE
Xcoop __RUINS X ALTERED __MOVED DATE
—FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This small story and a half clapboard building is at the southwest
corner of South Main Street and Pennsylvania Avenue in the Town of
Bel Air, Harford County, Maryland. The building was originally a three
part structure, a three bay gable roofed portion with a shed addition
to the rear and a shed roof porch on the front. The windows were double
hung sash, 6/6. The sashes in the half story have been recently replaced
but are of the same construction. Sometime between the publication of
the 1904 Insurance Map and the 1930 Insurance Map the porch was enclosed
and extended one bay to the south, so that the front (east) elevation
now shows four plate glass windows of unequal size with a door in the
middle. There are two other entries, one (disused) in the south elevation,
probably Mr. Fulton's access to his shop, since it gives onto the yard
of the Fulton House next door, and one in the north elevation in the
shed addition.

The interior has four rooms on the first floor: the enclosed
porch, the central block, which is used as the meeting room by the
Christian Scientists, and two rooms of unequal size in the shed addition.
The northernmost of these rooms has a small bathroom in the northeast
corner. Very little of the interior finish can be observed since the
porch and meeting room have been panelled with sheetwood. The staircase
to the half story has been changed since 1972, A narrow steep enclosed
stair rose along the south side facing east with access from the central
block. The stairway, still narrow, steep, and enclosed now runs west, in
the same place, with access from the porch. The half story has been
finished and is used as a Nursery and Sunday School.

A full basement is under the building, the part under the shed
addition being more recent, and probably dating from the installation of
the furnace. Access is by a pair of metal doors flush with the
sidewalk on the north (Pennsylvania Avenue) side. Just west of the doors
is a metaled over coal chute. Twice, once recently, the floor of the
main block has been reinforced by new beams.

A small, square, utilitarian stove chimney rises outside the west
(rear) elevation of the shed.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



- A SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD

—PREHISTORIC

—1400-1499
__1500-1599
__1600-1699
—1700-1799
X1800-1899
X1300-

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

—ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC
—_ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC
—AGRICULTURE
XARCHITECTURE

_ART

XCOMMERCE
—COMMUNICATIONS

—COMMUNITY PLANNING
_CONSERVATION
—ECONOMICS

—EDUCATION
—ENGINEERING
—EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT
—INDUSTRY

—INVENTION

—LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
—LAW

—LITERATURE

—MILITARY

—MusIC

__PHILOSOPHY
—POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

—RELIGION

—_SCIENCE

_-SCULPTURE
—SOCIAUHUMANITARIAN
__THEATER
—TRANSPORTATION
——OTHER {SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES

1845

BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This small board shop, built in 1845 by James Fulton to serve as

his harness shop,

is the oldest remaining commercial stand in Bel Air.

Typical of the little shops of the 18th and early 19th Century Mechanic,
Fulton made and mended

this building is a remarkable survival,
harness there for half a century.
of his four score years" and sold his business,
to John Bauer who had worked for him for over twenty years.
Democrat of January 1,

1892,

Mr.
He retired in 1892 "feeling the weight
although not the property,

remarked that Fulton

The Harford

"retires without a

blemish on a good name and transfers his business to a successor who bears

he same reputation for promptness and integrity."

Fulton died in 1897

at 86 years old leaving three surviving children, Mrs. John S. Young of
Fulton of Cumberland.

The 1904 Insurance Map of Bel Air shows that the building was still
The insurance map for 1930, corrected in

Bel Air,

occupied by a harness shop.
1960 and 1962,

and Mrs.

Joseph Weizel and John A,

shows the addition of one bay to the south in the front

(east) blocks from the appearance of the overlay the change was made

between 1930 and 1960.
The title to this building has passed along with the house next

door (the Fulton-Young House).
until 1941. In that year H. Miller Scarborough, Mary, his wife,

Harvey Scarborough, heirs at law of John A.

(267/332).

The Misses Smithers own it today.
Christian Science Reading Room.

Fulton Young,

Mr. Fulton's heirs held it undivided

and J.

Fulton sold their share in
the property to Florence Young Maulsby, Elizabeth C. Smithers, and
Minnie Margaret Smithers, heirs of Mary.

for $10,000
It is occupied by the
Around 1932 Kroh's Nursery had its

headquarters in the building but soon found it too small and moved to

Bond Street.

Richardson's Florists was

there in the 1960's,

and after

that a Music Store occupied the premises until the Christian Science
Reading Room leased it in 1972.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

ElIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA A

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 1/2 a +

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

This property occupies the northeast corner of parcel #818 in the
Town of Bel Air. Lo i

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE 3 COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

EB1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE
‘M, Larew, Architectural Historian e : 26 February 1979
ORGANIZATION T DATE N X
Town of Bel Air 838-8700
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE .
- 39 Hickory. Ave,
CITY OR TOWN STATE _ .
Bel Air Maryland

“z

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was offieially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

PS- 1108



267/332

70/439

14/41

31/85

HA-215

TITLE: Christian Science Reading Room

4 August 1941

H. Miller Scarborough & Mary B., wife, and
J. Harvey Scarborough, widower

to
Florence Young Maulsby, Elizabeth C. Smithers
& Minnie Margaret Smithers
a quit-claim release for $10,000
on the property
a complicated legal dispute partially solved
by Weaver vs. Mc Gonigall, 170 Md. 212
(see file) both the grantors and the grantees
claimed this and other property by virtue
of descent from James A. Fulton who died in
1897. Grantors were heirs at law of John
A. Fulton, last surviving child of James A.
Fulton: grantees were heirs of John's sister
Mary Fulton Young whose husband, John S.
Young, had survived her and had been in
possession of this property for "50 years
or more."

2 May 1891
Daniel Scott and Cornelia, wife, and Annie
G. Winchester, widow
to
James A. Fulton
$1100
the lot in Bel Air where he lives 1/2 a.

20 March 1863
Otho Scott
to
James Fulton lease $66/a "all that house and
lot" "houses" to be insured
Fulton must have lost it as a result to debt

24 May 1845

Augustus Bradford of Baltimore, trustee
to

James A. Fulton Lot #5 (1/2 A.) $120 at

public sale

The courtcase, 16 May 1842, Lee Magness
recovered a judgment against George N.
Warden for $1000 and costs to be released



23/351
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on payment of $600 with interest from 1837.
Warden died in 1842 without paying. The
court ordered the sale of property. Warden
owned lot #5 and the pleading makes no
mention of a house.

The sale price suggests no house. (Box 694,
Harford County Equity Records)

20 May 1840
Benjamin Bond
to
George N. Warden
$220 Lot #5 1/2 a +
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$11.00 Fodaral Stamps. Aug. U0, 194l Mallad to Xldridge Hood Young, &4 Contral Sav. Bank Bldg.

Bal tw., M1,
$10.00 State Stamps. Trfd.

THIS DKED, made this 4th day of August A.D. 1941 by H. MILLER SCARIOROUGH and MARY B.
, SCARBOROUGH, hls wife, and J. UARVIY SCARDOROUGH, widowor.

WHEREAS cthe aald grantors coluim tlitle to the heralnuftor desoribed Lruet or parceal of
land mcquired by James A. Fulton by deed from Danial Scott nnd wife and Annie G. Winchester
dated May 2, 1801, and recorded mmong the Land Records of Harford County in Liber A.L.J. No. 70
follo 429; the sald James A, Fulton, widower, having departed this life intestate on Seplember
25, 1897, leaving as his only heirs at law and next of kin a son, John A. Multon, and two daugh-
ters, Mary, who intermarried with John S. Young, and Susan, who intormarried with Joseph We'ral,
and the said Mary Fulton Young departed this 1ife on May 10, 1905, intostate, without issue
survived by her husband Jobhn S. Young =nd leaving s brother, said John A. Fulton, and her sister
Susan Welzel surviving; that Susan Welzel departed this life !ntestate und without issue on
June 18, 1915, her husband Joseph Welzel surviving, who departed this life unmarried, and with-
out issus on March 24, 1925; and Joim A. Pulton (the last surviving child of Jemes A. Fulton)
unmarried, departed this life February 14, 1934, leaving a last will and testament and codicils
wherein he devised all of the rest, residus and remainder (including the tract or parcel of
land hereinefter described) to his heirs at law and first cousins, whick by construction of the
Court of Appeals of Maryland in Waaver vs. McGonlgsll 170 Md. 212, it was determined that the
sald residuary estate devolved from Mary A. Scarborough and Josephine McGonigall; that Mary A.
Scarborough departed this life on January 25, 1925, intestate leaving as her only helrs at law
and next of kin said J. Harvey Scarborough, husband, and seid E. ¥Miller Ecarborough, son; that
sald Josephine McGeonigall departed this life on or atout December 1, 1936, leaving a last will
and testament in which she devised all the rest, residue end remainder of her estate (her

., interest in the tract or parcal of land hersinafter desoribed being included therein) unto her

nephew the said H. Killer Scerporough (see Wills Records of Harford County, Liber A.J.G. No. 20
folio 20); and WHEREAS, Florence Young Msulsby, Zlizabeth . Smithers and Minnie Margaret
Smithers, claim the tract or parcel of land hereinafter described as the residuery devisses of
John S. Young, late of Harford County, deceased, wao had been living upon and in possession
of sald tract or parcel of land for fifty years or more, and WHERZAS the grentors herein Lave
agreed to convey the tract or parcel of land hereizafter described to the residuary devisees
of John £. Young upon the payment of $10,000.90 and gquit claim snd relssse all the right,
title =nd intersst of sald grantors in the estate of James A. Fulton in and to sald tract or
percel of land.

NOW TIERIFORZ THIS DEZD WITMESSZTH: that for end in consideration of the premises
and the payment of sald sum of $10,000.07 recel;t whereof is hersby acknowlaiged, the sald H.
Miller Scarborough, Mary B. Scarborough, hia wifa, and J. iisrvsy'&curhamugn, do grant, convey,
assign, relenss ond guit claim unuos the sald FLURXICE YCUNG MAULSSY, BLIZASETH C. 8111.']-13&.‘; and
MILNTE MARGARKET SMITHZHS, thelr helrs and essiz-s, all the right, title and interesat of seid
grantors or of thase claiming, oy, from or undsr %hs; In and %o all that trect or parcel of
land situats in the Town of 3ol Alr, Harford County, end the S:ate of Yaryland, and described
as follows: Baglaniamg faor the gume at tha soutiamasterly !ntersection of Pennsyivania Avanuw
and Meln Street at an irom pin driven In the pground et eald intersectlion and running thonca in
LY lo-a:r‘.nrly"lquu‘.:sn alunpg e wrsteriy wlde of Yaln S.ipeet 7€.21" mure or lazs to 8 leasse-
hold 1a% of ground formarly swned oy Joha &, Younz and Xillleent L. Youns (noth now deceazed);
thonee in a wentarly dlrectloun 297 %o the aantarly alde of Sugd Gtpreet; thouce in & nopsherly
diraction along the anatarly saida of Bund Surmes 72,18" to the mouthssaterly carzar of Bund

Suraat and Pennaylvanin Avague; thence alonsg the ooutharly elde of Pecanylvenla Avenus in an

PRI




MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST
21 STATE CIRCLE
SHAW HOUSE

ANNAPOLIS, MARYLAND 21401

HISTORIC SITES SURVEY FIELD SHEET
Individual Structure Survey Form

SURVEY NUMBER: HA-215

NEGATIVE FILE NUMBER:

UTM REFERENCES:
Zone/Easting/Northing

U.S.G.S. QUAD. MAP:

PRESENT FORMAL NAME:
Christian Science Reading Room

FUNCTIONAL TYPE: Commercial

COUNTY: Harford ORIGINAL FORMAL NAME;
TOWN: Bel Alr James Fulton's Harness Shop
LOCATION: 2 S. Main Street PRESENT USE:Religious
Bel Air, Maryland 21014 ORIGINAL USE:Harness Shop
ARCHITECT/ENGINEER:
COMMON NAME:
Christian Science Reading Room BUILDER/CONTRACTOR :

OWNER: Margaret & Elizabeth Smithers

PHYSICAL CONDITION OF STRUCTURE:

ADDRESS: Box 74 Excellent ( ) Good ( )
Chesapeake City, Md. 21915 Fair (X) Poor: ( )

ACCESSIBILITY TO PUBLIC: THEME: Architectural

Yes () No () Restricted (X) STYLE: Vernacular

LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE: DATE BUILT: c. 1845

Local (X) State ( ) National ( )

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
"Structural System
1. Foundation:
2. Wall Structure
A. Wood Frame:
B. Wood Bearing Masonry:
C. Iron( ) D. Steel( ) E.
3. Wall Covering:

Bonding Pattern:
4. Roof Structure
A. Truss:
B. Other:
5. Roof Covering:

6. Engineering Structure:
7 Other:

Wings ( )Other: porch enclosed

Roof Style:

Other:
Number of Stories: 1-1/2
Number of Bays: )

Approximate Dimensions: 23'5" x 32'

Stone(X)Brick( )Concrete( )Concrete Block{)

Post and Beam(X)Balloon( )

Brick( )Stone( )Concrete( )Concrete Block( )
Other:

Clapboard (X)Board and Batten( )Wood Shingle( )Shiplap( )

Novelty( )Stucco( )Sheet Metal( )Aluminum( )Asphalt Shingle( )

Brick Veneer( )Stone Veneer( )

Other:

Wood( )Iron( )Steel( )Concrete( )

Slate( )Wood Shingle( )Asphalt Shingle(X)Sheet Metal( )~
Built Up( )Rolled( )Tile( )Other:

Appendages: Porches(X Towers( )Cupolas( )Dormers( )Chimneys(X)Sheds@X)Ells( )

Gable(X)Hip( )Shed( )Flat( )Mansard( )Gambrel( )Jerkinhead( )
Saw Tooth( )With Monitor( With Bellcast( )With Parapet( )With False Front( )

Entrance Location: Main St.

THREAT TO STRUCTURE:
No Threat( )Zoning( )Roads( )

Development( )Deterioration( )
Alteration ( )Other:

{1 along Pa. Ave.; may be moved

sidewalk building

LOCAL ATTITUDES:
Positive(X)Negative( )
Mixed( ) Other:




KHZDIS

ADDITIONAL ARCHITECTURAL OR STRUCTURAL DESCRIPTION:

Upstairs Sunday School and Nursery
Porch and meeting room wood panel

Staircase changed from inside meeting room running east to a west run

with access from porch

RELATED STRUCTURES: (Describe)

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE:

The oldest remaining commercial
stand in town. Excellent example of
mechanic's shop.

REFERENCES:

MAP: (Indicate North In Circle)

SURROUNDING ENVIRONMENT:

Open Lane( )Woodland( )Scattered Buildings(
Moderately Built Up( )Densely Built Up( )
Residential( )Commercial(x)

Agricultural( )Industrial( )

Roadside Strip Develcopment( )

Other:

M. Larew

RECORDED BY:
Town of Bel Air

ORGANIZATION:
13 March 1979

DATE RECORDED:
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